
Contracts – Attack Outline 

I. Is there a contract? A contract is a promise the law will enforce


1) Is there a promise?


2) Is it the type of promise the law will enforce?

II. Is there a promise?
1) Promise = manifestation of intention to act or refrain from acting so made as to justify the promisee in believing that the promisor has made a commitment 

2) Manifestation


a. Communication – must be at least 2 people

3) Commitment – did the communication transmit commitment? 

a. Interpretation of language; spoken, body

b. Interpretation necessarily requires context: facts and circumstances

c. Examine language under the facts and circumstances

4) Two tests

a. Subjective – promisor intends commitment; promisee believes commitment; old test, rarely used
b. Objective – intention irrelevant; did the promisee believe, and was the belief reasonable?
c. Would a recipient of this communication believe a promise had been made? 
III. Is it a promise the law will enforce?
1) Internal limitations on enforcement of promise

a. Bargain principle

b. Reliance – justified, detrimental

2) External limitations on enforcement 

a. Violates social, political, economic policy

b. Statute of Frauds, mistake, impossibility, frustration, duress, statute of limitations

IV. Is it a bargain?
1) An agreement to an exchange and consideration

a. Agreement analysis: offer + acceptance = manifestations of mutual assent/agreement

i. Is there an offer?

ii. Has it been terminated?

iii. Has it been accepted?
2) Agreement: assent by 2 or more people to the same thing

a. If you’re not told there’s an agreement, go to offer and acceptance analysis

i.    Must be communications

ii. Usually there’s a series; bargaining, negotiations

iii. Is there a time when they’ve stopped being negotiations and become agreement?

b. Is there an offer?

c. Which offer has been accepted? 

3) Offer: communication that reasonably leads another to believe he can conclude a contract by acceptance

a. A promise that asks for something in return

i.   If you give that something, you’re accepting & it’s the consideration
b. Has an offer been communicated? Or is it negotiations? Intent? Inquiry? Pure advertisement (not Lefkowitz)? Has it reached the point of commitment yet, crossed that line?
i. Language – definite, complete terms

ii. A fact question – analyze the law to the facts of our scenario; take each communication and determine if it’s an offer, argue both sides pro and con; then assuming it’s an offer, has it been accepted? Assuming it’s not, is the next communication an offer, has it been accepted, etc?
c. Assuming it’s an offer, has the offer terminated?
i. Lapse – termination by time; specified by offer itself or “reasonable time”  (what’s reasonable? facts and circumstances, argue it)

ii. Revocation – offeror revokes; can do so at any time 

· Unless option contract: irrevocable offer w/ agreement & separate consideration; offeror sells right to revoke


1) Is there a secondary promise?


2) Has it been agreed to?


3) Is there consideration?

· Drennan court implied the promise

iii. Rejection – offeree rejects; offer is GONE

· Did the offeree reject? Or was he just asking for more information? Fact question

4) Acceptance: assent to the terms of the offer

a. Offeror controls the terms


i.    What is being asked for?

ii. What’s reasonable if offer not explicit?

b. Mode/method of acceptance asked for; time asked for

i. By doing an act

ii. By making a promise

iii. Legal ramifications flow from distinction btwn unilateral and bilateral

· If 2 promises, who is to perform first? Has performance occurred?

iv. If bilateral, no acceptance until communication; notice not knowledge (mail rule)

v. No notice required for performance unless offeree KNOWS offeror will not learn of performance 

c. Counter-offer

i. Because offeror controls offer, and acceptance is assent to terms, if offeree changes terms or adds to them, then offeree has made a counter-offer

1) Original offer is rejected

2) Counter-offer becomes the offer; offeree becomes the offeror

3) Go through the analysis from this point

ii. UCC: battle of the forms; did the parties ever agree?

iii. Mirror image rule: at common law, acceptance must mirror the offer

5) Consideration: bargained-for legal detriment 

a. The core of the bargain principle – giving up something; an exchange of value (the parties put the value on it)


b.   Legal detriment – a reliance the law recognizes

i. Doing an act not otherwise required to do

ii. Refraining from doing an act otherwise permitted to do

iii. Promising to act

iv. Promising to refrain

v. Limitations: 

· Must have right to act/refrain (or good faith, reasonable belief in right)

· Must not have pre-existing duty to act/refrain


c. Bargained-for

i. Promisor must ask for the detriment; it must be part of the exchange

ii. Difference btwn consideration and conditional gift

· Fact analysis: is something being bargained for?

· What was the motive of the promisor? Just to make gift or the get something in return? (e.g. Allegheny College – Cardozo found she was bargaining for immortality)
V. Is it enforceable reliance? Principle of Promissory Estoppel
1) Detrimental reliance, usually no bargain

2) RK(2) § 90: If there’s a promise, reasonably expected to induce reliance, and it does induce reliance, and injustice can be avoided only by enforcement of the promise.
a. Promise

b. Promisor should reasonably expect reliance – it must be foreseeable 

c. Reliance actually occurs, to promisee’s detriment

d. Injustice can be avoided only by enforcing

3) At first it was only applied to pure gift promises

a. Gift – nothing asked in return (so not bargain)

b. Recipient incurs obligations on reliance, only way to avoid injustice is to enforce 

4) Evolved to be applied to commercial cases

a. Attempt to reach an agreement (Drennan – promissory estoppel used to create option contract)

b. Red Owl applied in the negotiation stage

5) In most jurisdictions, it’s now a basis for enforcing any type of promise

6) Damages limited as justice requires: often just reliance or restitution (e.g. in Red Owl, P did not receive lost profits from store he was forced to sell)

7) Fact analysis: use the bargain principle first; if it doesn’t work, use reliance

VI. Warranties
1) A promise – there are two kinds in a contract

a. Delivery promise: to do or not do something

b. Warranty promise: promise to pay if something happens or doesn’t happen 

2) Warrantor bears the risk of loss

a. “Perfect hand” – delivery promise is to operate; warranty promise is that result will be perfect (normally doctors don’t warranty result, but in this case, court found he did)

b. Insurance companies warranty results, even though the risks are out of their control (e.g. Anderson, if that had been found to be true warranty)

3) Warranties under common law = caveat emptor

4) Warranties under UCC

a. If seller/promisor sells good  and affirms, describes or promises something about the goods that becomes part of the basis of the bargain, there’s a warranty (Sexias description of brazilwood would’ve been warranty under UCC)

b. Look at what is being sold and parse it:

i. Descriptions become warranties

ii. E.g. “Selling 1995 red convertible Ford mustang automobile” = 6 express warranties, any of which can be violated (e.g. is it an “automobile” if it doesn’t run?)

c. Deliverable = seller will deliver something; warranty = what that something is

i. What are the warranties?

ii. What are the fact arguments?

VII. What are the damages?
1) Expectancy is always the norm 

a. Put non-breaching party in the position they would’ve been in had the contract gone through

b. Not where party thought he’d be; but where he’d actually be

c. Dollars and cents – measure the loss
2) Where should the person have been MINUS where the person is

3) Difficult part is determining exactly where the person should have been

a. Peevyhouse: is it actually restoring the land, or just the increase in value?

b. Groves v. Peevyhouse debate has never been settled; question is always WHAT is the expectancy???

4) Reliance damages

a. Loss suffered relying on promise; subsumed in expectancy

5) If it’s a losing contract, may P sue for reliance?

a. Yes, BUT D has the right to prove the loss

b. If loss proven, it will be subtracted from reliance

c. This takes us right back to expectancy; it just switched the burden of proof from P to D

VIII. Unjust Enrichment
1) Separate cause of action, but grew out of writs that conflated the two concepts 

2) Elements

a. Benefit/enrichment to D (belongs to P)

b. Allowing D to keep it would be unjust

3) Is there a benefit enjoyed by D due to P/belonging to P?

4) Is it unjust?

a. Not unjust if:

i. Gift

ii. Result of enforceable contract

iii. Emergency

b. Unjust = defined by excluding the negative

5) When do these cases arise?

a. Theft

b. Parties believe enforceable contract exists, but it doesn’t

c. Material breach of contract; non-breaching party may choose to rescind, sue in unjust enrichment

6) If there’s a benefit in the hands of D that belongs to P, analyze unjust enrichment even if there’s a contract

7) Restitution: 

a. Not DAMAGES because not compensatory

b. NOT loss suffered, but benefit conferred

i. In contract, P sues for his loss

ii. Looked at from a different perspective

c. Value: what something costs is evidence of value (it’s not the value itself)
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DAMAGES

1) CONTRACT EXISTS

Bargain contract

· Always seek expectancy damages
· If profits can be determined, that’s the “expectancy” portion

· If profits uncertain, then just reliance (expenditures)

· If losses can be shown, they are subtracted from the recovery

FORMULA: expenditures – expected additional costs + expected profit – expected losses = damages      
· If cost of performing contract is extremely disproportionate to value of benefit from performance:

· Cost of performance
· Expected increase in value to non-breaching party
· Determine what the primary purpose of the contract is: 
· If it’s the performance, award cost of performance

· If it’s the end product, award the value
Reliance contract (promissory estoppel)

· Damages limited as justice required; may be just restitution, reliance damages

· Damages should not put promisee in better position than performance would have

· Consequential damages should not place greater burden on promisor than performance would

2) UNJUST ENRICHMENT EXISTS (or P chooses to disaffirm contract)
Restitution damages

· Generally: reasonable value of benefit conferred
· But, may be limited to value of benefit to D “as justice requires,” for example if P is the one who willfully breaches
· If contract price for goods/services is much lower than fair mkt value, recovery may be higher under restitution than contract (Stringfellow – majority rule; under Kehoe, recovery limited by contract)

· How to calculate: reasonable market value of benefit conferred
SALE OF GOODS –  APPLY THE U.C.C.
If it’s a mixed contract, good + services, then determine “predominant purpose of the transaction”

1) UCC 2-207 – Analyzing Offer & Acceptance for sale of goods 

a. Agreement = bargain of parties in fact, found in language or circumstances
b. Formation of contract

i. Contract may be made in any manner sufficient to show agreement (e.g. conduct)

ii. Moment of its formation does not have to be pinpointed

iii. Contract may exist even if one or more terms are left open, in parties clearly intended to form contract (BUT the more open terms, the less likely court will find binding contract was intended) 

c. Offer & Acceptance

i. Unless otherwise specified, offer may be accepted in any way reasonable under the circumstances

ii. Offer to buy goods for prompt/current shipment may be accepted by either a prompt promise to ship or the prompt shipment of conforming or non-conforming goods

· Non-conforming goods are not an acceptance IF seller seasonably notifies buyer that shipment is only offered as an accommodation to the buyer

· Otherwise, nonconforming goods are at once an acceptance and a breach

iii. If beginning performance is a reasonable mode of acceptance, offeror must be notified performance begun in reasonable time, or he may treat the offer as having lapsed before acceptance

· Offeree must unambiguously express intention to complete performance

· Common law doctrine remains that beginning performance may temporarily bar revocation

· Offeror may interpret beginning performance as constituting acceptance

d. Conduct by parties which recognizes existence of contract is sufficient to establish contract even if writings do not (e.g. goods are shipped, accepted, and paid for); only question is what are the terms

Analysis:


UCC 2-207 Subsection 1:

1) Was it a definite & seasonable expression of acceptance (must not change any key elements of contract – price, quantity)?


( No: no contract (unless it’s a counter-offer which is later accepted)


( Yes: keep going

2) If it states additional or different terms, is acceptance expressly conditional on assent to those terms?


( Yes: no contract


( No: THEN THERE IS A CONTRACT.


UCC 2-207 Subsection 2: What are the terms of the contract? (Btwn Merchants Only)

3) Are the changes additional terms or different terms?


a. Additional terms become part of the contract UNLESS



i.   the offer limits acceptance to original terms



ii.  additional terms materially alter the offer



iii. there is a subsequent objection to the new terms


b. Different terms are treated differently by different jurisdictions



i.   Never become part of contract



ii.  Treat them like additional terms (follow rules in “a”)



iii. Knock-Out Rule: if terms conflict, they knock each other out, and both 



    disappear; use Article 2 of UCC to fill in missing terms (NM uses this rule)

2) Statute of Frauds

    Requirements for enforceable contracts of sales of goods (>$500):
a. Some writing, sufficient to indicate contract has been made

b. Between the parties

c. Signed by the party against whom the action is sought (generally the defendant) or his authorized agent

d. The writing can incorrectly state a term of the contract; but it’s only enforceable to the quantity of goods shown in the writing

e. EXCEPTIONS – (If an exception exists, it defeats the affirmative defense of the S/F). Contract can violate above requirements and still be enforceable if:

i. Between merchants: if one party sends signed, written confirmation of contract, and other party gives no objection w/in 10 days from receipt

ii. Goods are to be specially manufactured, they’re not suitable for sale to others in normal course of business, and seller has made substantial beginning of their manufacture or commitments for their procurement

iii. Party against whom enforcement is sought admits that a contract for sale was made – POWERFUL  provision, but not enforceable beyond quantity of goods admitted

iv. Goods or payment has been received and accepted

3) Express Warranties UCC § 2-213 

a. Express warranties are created by:

i. affirmation of fact or promise made by the seller to the buyer which relates to the goods and becomes part of basis of bargain
ii. description of goods which is made part of basis of bargain

iii. sample or model which is made part of basis of bargain

iv. If any of these factors is made part of basis of bargain, warranty exists regardless of intent

b. Affirmation of Fact

i. Must be unequivocal, definite, specific, not suggest product is experimental in nature

ii. Exception for language that is “puffing,” expressions of seller’s opinion on quality of product

iii. Puffing – seller states opinion on matter on which seller has no special knowledge and on which buyer may also be expected to form own opinion

iv. Not puffing – seller asserts fact of which buyer is ignorant; based on special knowledge seller has of product which buyer not expected to share

v. Burden of proof on seller to show puffing rather than affirmation of fact

vi. Affirmation of value of good alone not enough to create warranty (need actual sale)

c. “Basis of Bargain” is not RELIANCE

i. Helps buyer decide to buy

ii. Even if person did not rely on it, but it was still a factor in person’s decision to buy, it is part of basis of bargain

iii. Not basis of bargain if statement about a feature buyer doesn’t care about (this car goes 100, I just need it to go 70); statement about feature buyer doesn’t like in product and turns out to be false (this has GE motor, too bad, I hate GE motors, but buy anyway); statement is too ridiculous and buyer says s/he doesn’t believe it

iv. Does buyer put confidence in it? Is buyer reasonable to do so?

Is there a contract?


A promise the law will enforce 


Objective manifestation of intention to act or refrain from acting so that promisee understands a commitment (reasonably believed)








Is there a promise?


Consider language + context


Is language giving advice, stating opinion, stating fact, prophesying or making prediction RATHER than promise?


Are there definite terms?


Do parties have unequal knowledge?


Subjective: promisee believed promisor was serious


Objective: reasonable person would have believed serious


Interpret from vantage of promisee


Does promisee have reason to know promisor not serious?








Is there a promise under the bargain principle?


Agreement (manifestation of mutual assent) + Consideration





If not, is it unjust enrichment?


Benefit conferred +             unjust for D to keep it





Is there an offer?


Not just invitation to make offer; statement of intent or inquiry


Totality of communication; don’t have to pinpoint moment made 


Clear, definite, explicit language 


Can only be accepted by one person 


Leaves nothing open for negotiation


Manifestation of willingness to enter into a bargain, so made as to justify another person in understanding that his assent to the bargain is invited and will conclude it 


Conditional promise (offerer held to terms only if offeree fulfills conditions)


Grants offeree the power to conclude a contract by acceptance


Offeror knows or has reason to know that offeree will RELY on the statement; at this point in the negotiations, can the offeree rely on the other party, or does more need to happen first?





Usually NOT offers:


Ads


Price quote


House listing


Written purchase form


Negotiations











Has the offer terminated?


Passage of time (specified or reasonable)


Revocation


Death or incapacity


Illegality


Rejection


Counter-offer





Has the offer been accepted?


Offer must be communicated to offeree before it can be accepted


Unless otherwise specified, offer may be accepted in any manner and by any medium reasonable under the circumstances


Offeror may specify how offer must be accepted


Acceptance must be unconditional, unequivocal 


But may involve conditional promise


Effective when communicated (when letter mailed)








Is there consideration?


Bargained-for legal detriment


Bargained for


Not gift, exchange for past act, performer didn’t know of offer


Legal detriment


Acting


Refraining


Promising to act


Promising to refrain











Revocation


Not effective until communicated


Offer may be revoked at any time before acceptance UNLESS option contract


Option contract = a separate agreement, subsidiary promise to keep offer open for certain time; must be supported by consideration








Is offer bilateral or unilateral?


Unilateral may only be accepted by performance


Bilateral may be accepted by performance or by return promise; acceptance must be communicated








Does acceptance vary from terms of offer?


Mirror image rule: any additional or different terms make it a counter-offer, not an acceptance


Offer disappears, may never be accepted


RK(2) loosened: 


Offeror may reaffirm original offer


Changes OK if acceptance not conditional on assent


Legally req’d terms OK


Clearly independent/ collateral terms OK





No consideration when:


No legal right to act or refrain


Good faith, reasonable belief right exists is sufficient


Pre-existing duty to act or refrain


Illusory promise








If no consideration, is there reliance?


“Unbargained-for legal detriment”


Charitable subscriptions, family/gift promises


Promise which promisor should reasonably expect to induce action on the part of the promisee or a 3rd person and which does induce such action or forbearance is binding if injustice can be avoided only by enforcement of the promise


Must have actual detriment/change in position on reliance


Reliance must be reasonably foreseeable 


Red Owl – people may be held responsible for reasonable reliance during negotiations, before agreement is even reached








Reliance option contract


Offer which offeror should reasonably expect to induce action or forbearance of a substantial character on the part of the offeror before acceptance and which does induce such action or forbearance is binding as an option contract to the extent necessary to avoid injustice





Is promise unenforceable for other reasons?





General


Promisor lacks capacity to contract


Infancy (0-18)


Mental incapacity


Corporate incapacity


Drunkenness/ Under Influence


Social/family promises


Sham contracts


Medically excused 


Fraud – promise based on misrepresentations


Unconscionability 








Impossibility, Impracticability,


Frustration


Impracticability of performance


death (in personal services contract)


illegality – one or more provisions becomes illegal


destruction of the subject matter necessary to fulfill contract


“other” (very narrow)


Frustration– principal purpose of K is frustrated through no fault of parties








Statute of Frauds


Contracts must be in writing if


Administrator/executor of estate promises to pay someone out of his own pocket


Person agrees to pay another’s debt, w/o receiving any benefit (suretyship)


Sale of real property


Contract made on consideration of marriage 


Agreement is to be performed more than a year in the future


Sale of goods >$500 (see UCC)








If no contract or unenforceable, is there unjust enrichment? 


Benefit conferred on defendant by plaintiff + unjust for defendant to keep the benefit


Expectation of being paid – professionals expect to be paid for services


Gifts are not unjust


Officious intermeddler – “mere volunteer” not entitled to recovery


D acquired benefit by act wrongful to P (e.g. theft)


D acquired benefit by act wrongful to P (e.g. theft)


P elects to disaffirm contract, recover under unjust enrichment


P gave D benefit under supposedly enforceable contract


Benefit was transferred to D without any contract or any wrongdoing (e.g. emergency)


D received benefit by mistake








Mistake


Mutual mistake excuses; both parties confused as to essence of contract


Unilateral mistake doesn’t excuse UNLESS unreasonable for other party to believe genuine





Doctrine of Substantial Performance


Court implies condition that substantial performance is condition of other party’s performance 


If breaching party has substantially performed (breach is minor), s/he can recover against other party (generally in unjust enrichment) 


Non-breaching party may also recover for the minor breach





Partial performance


If unilateral offer, and performance has begun, offeror must give reasonable time to finish before revoking


Contract formed as soon as performance commences, but promisor not required to pay unless performance is completed


If not completed, unjust enrichment
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